

# DOUBLE BAY TOWN CENTRE

# Feasibility Assessment







Prepared for Woollahra Council



## Contents

1.0	Stud	ly Purpose and Approach	5
	1.1	Purpose of the Study	5
	1.2	Study Approach	6
	1.3	The Study Area	6
2.0	Feas	ibility Assessment	8
	2.1	Financial Feasibility Criteria	8
	2.2	Test Sites Location	8
	2.3	Development Options	8
		2.3.1 Bay Street and Cross Street Precinct Development Options	9
	2.4	Financial Modelling Results	10
		2.4.1 Test Site 1: Cross Street 1	10
		What does it all mean?	10
		2.4.2 Test Site 2: Cross Street 2	10
		What does it all mean?	11
		Test Site 3: New South Head Road 1	11
		What does it all mean?	11
		What does it all mean?	11
		2.4.3 Test Site 5: New South Head Road 3	12
		What does it all mean?	12
		2.4.4 Test Site 6: Bay Street	12
		What does it all mean?	12
3.0	Key	Findings and Recommendations	13
Appei	ndix A	: Market Research	15
	3.1	Residential Apartment Sales Evidence	15
		3.1.1 '1788 Residences', 20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay	15
		3.1.2 'Essence', 321 New South Head Road, Double Bay	16
		3.1.3 33-39 Hamilton Street, Rose Bay	16
		3.1.4 'Aristocrat', 62A Dover Road, Rose Bay	17
	3.2	Residential Findings	17
	3.3	Overview of non-residential market	18
	3.4	Commercial Market Evidence Findings	18
	3.5	Retail Market Evidence Findings	12



# Tables

Table 1 - Site 1, Results       1         Table 2 - Site 2 Results       1	0
Table 2 - Site 2 Results	0
Table 3 - Site 3 Results	1
Table 4 - Site 4 Results	1
Table 5 - Site 5 Results	2
Table 6 - Site 6 Results	
Table 7 - Financial Modelling Results	
Table 8: Existing and Proposed Planning Controls	
Table 9 - '1788 Residences', 20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay	
Table 10 - Aristocrat Rose Bay	7
igures	
Figure 1 – Plan of the Double Bay Commercial Centre	6
Figure 2 -20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay	_
Figure 2 -20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay	5
Figure 3 - Essence – 321 New South Head Road, Double Bay	6
Figure 4 - 33-39 Hamilton Street, Rose Bay	6



### **Quality Assurance**

#### **Report Contacts**

#### Virginia Phillips

#### **Associate**

Adv Dip Val, MProDev, PMAPI

Virginia.Phillips@hillpda.com

#### **Supervisor**

#### **Martin Hill**

#### Director

M.Real Estate (UNSW), M.Property Development (UTS), BSc (Hons), Certified Practicing Valuer (Unrestricted), FAPI, MRICS

Martin.Hill@hillpda.com

#### **Quality Control**

This document is for discussion purposes only unless signed and dated by a Principal of HillPDA.

#### **Reviewer**

Signature	Dated	05/06/18
-----------	-------	----------

#### **Report Details**

Job Number	V18118
Version	draft
File Name	Double Bay Commercial Centre Economic Study
Date Printed	June 2018



### 1.0 STUDY PURPOSE AND APPROACH

HillPDA was commissioned by Woollahra Municipal Council (Council) to undertake an Economic Feasibility Study (the Study) in accordance with the proposed commercial floor space Strategy, with a specific focus on the financial viability of first and second floor commercial office space within the Double Bay Commercial Centre (the Centre).

By way of background, in 2015, HillPDA prepared the Double Bay Economic Feasibility Study, which was commissioned by Council to investigate opportunities for increased residential development within Double Bay Commercial Centre. Council highlighted the underlying intent of the Study was to attract a younger demographic of 'city makers' into the Centre to enhance its vitality and viability and explore why substantial new development is presently not occurring in the Centre. To achieve this, smaller apartments was suggested to support additional residential population outcomes.

The purpose of the 2015 Study was to inform and make recommendations to Council on the demand, supply and the financial viability of smaller apartments in the Centre. To test this, Council identified six sites located in different locations within the Centre. To inform Council on the viability, HillPDA undertook a feasibility assessment on each site at an FSR of 2.5:1 comprising a mixed use development with ground floor retail and residential apartments (including studio, 1, 2 and 3 bedrooms) on the upper floors with basement parking. The findings on development feasibility alone revealed that four of the six sites were not viable at an FSR of 2.5:1. This meant that the Site existing improvement value was higher than the redevelopment value. For the four Sites not viable at an FSR of 2.5:1, further testing was undertaken to determine the "tipping point" at which a development becomes viable.

To achieve Council's objective, HillPDA recommended that the existing planning control densities would be required to increase from 2.5:1 to 3:1 and 3.5:1 to facilitate a mixed use development comprising ground level retail and residential apartments on the upper levels.

#### 1.1 Purpose of the Study

Following the 2015 Double Bay Commercial Centre Study, Council has noticed that new developments proposed in the Centre have not considered additional commercial floor space above the ground floor.

To future proof the Centre's commercial floor space Council is preparing a Strategy. This Strategy seeks to retain commercial floor space by requiring all new development to provide a minimum commercial FSR of 1.3:1 (this is 0.6:1 for retail and 0.7:1 for first floor office space).

Council is mindful that the minimum commercial space (FSR of 1.3:1) is likely impact the viability of new development in the Centre, resulting in higher residential FSRs to offset the commercial value. In saying this, the additional FSR required is considered minor compared to the long term benefits gained from the provision of commercial floor space within the Centre. The long term benefits would accommodate the growing Double Bay population by providing local employment opportunities, local business spend; and provide a variety of retail offering and day time viability and vibrancy in the Centre. Having regard to the benefits, the Strategy's minimum commercial FSR of 1.3:1 we consider a reasonable and necessary quantity to provide the local residents access to their future day- to - day goods and services.

Further to the above, it was shown in the 2015 Study that a mixed use development (ground floor retail and residential on upper floors) was not viable at the existing planning FSR 2.5:1. Owing to commercial space achieving a lower sale value in comparison to residential, it is likely that an additional floor of commercial space at an FSR 2.5:1 would not be viable. It was agreed by Council that this Study will examine and determine if the Centre's proposed planning FSRs (3:1 and 3.5:1) should be amended to maintain a mix of commercial (at least two floors) and residential floor space in new development.



The recommendations would inform Council if the FSR controls should be increased to achieve a feasible outcome. To address this, HillPDA has provided:

- Advice concerning the financial viability of providing one or two floors of commercial office space with respect to the Centre's existing planning controls;
- An understanding of the six identified test site's floor space ratio (FSRs) at a Project Internal Rate of Return (IRR) at 18% per annum by testing the following development scenarios:
  - Option 1: Bay and Cross Street Precinct: A mixed use development at an FSR of 3:1 to 3.5:1
     with a minimum commercial FSR of 1.3:1;
  - Option 2: Bay and Cross Street Precinct: A mixed use development at an FSR of 3.5:1 with a minimum commercial FSR of 2:1; and
  - Option 3: New South Head Road: A mixed use development at an FSR of 3.5:1 with a minimum commercial FSR of 2:1.
- Recommendations to support the development of commercial space into the Centre to support Council's objectives.

#### 1.2 Study Approach

To inform the Study we have reviewed property databases and interviewed industry experts (including realestate agents) that informed our market analysis (Appendix A).

Collectively this data has informed the feasibility testing of six nominated sites in the Centre in accordance with the proposed planning controls and then under a range of different development options to test the sensitivity of outcomes (Chapter 2). The test results have informed our recommendations to Council regarding the viability of additional commercial floor space in new developments.

#### 1.3 The Study Area

For the purposes of the Study Area we have defined the Study Area as the Double Bay Commercial Centre as shown in Figure 1. We note this Study Area is consistent with the 2015 Study Area.

Figure 1 – Plan of the Double Bay Commercial Centre





The Centre is situated within the suburb of Double Bay, one of Sydney's Eastern Suburbs. Double Bay is located approximately 5 kilometres from the Sydney Central Business District (CBD) and approximately 1 kilometre from Edgecliff Railway Station.

Double Bay is well serviced by bus and ferry public transport services. The major arterial road, New South Head Road, runs directly through the Centre. The Centre is well regarded as a premium retail precinct with numerous, restaurants, cafés, health and beauty services, commercial office space, specialty stores and designer label shops. A mix of business services are also offered together with new large format Woolworths.

Over the last decade the area has transformed from a culture of street-side cafes and restaurants to include a number of licensed bars enhancing its appeal and draw to a younger demographic. The transformation grained momentum with the development of Public Library and Kiaora Lane development on the southern side of New South Head Road.



### 2.0 FEASIBILITY ASSESSMENT

HillPDA has adopted the Residual Land Value (RLV) approach as the method of assessment. This involves assessing the value of the end product of the development, allowing for development costs, and making a further deduction for the profit and risk that a developer would require to take on the project.

In assessing the value of the Subject Site as a development site, the proprietary software product Estate Master Development Feasibility model is used.

#### 2.1 Financial Feasibility Criteria

For our hypothetical modelling, we have set a target project Internal Rate of Return (IRR) of 18% p.a. as the primary indicator; however regard has been given to the following performance criteria:

The Residual Land Value: is the land purchase price a developer can afford to achieve for a viable development;

Development Margin: which is profit divided by total development costs (including selling costs).

#### 2.2 Test Sites Location

As each site in the Centre has different development parameters, the test sites have been selected on the basis that they vary in land size, location, existing improvements and number of lots required for amalgamation. The mix of test site was chosen to provide a range of development options in the Centre. For commercial in confidence reasons, we have not provided detailed addresses for the test sites. A description of the sites is as follows:

Site 1: Cross Street 1 - southern side of Cross Street.

Site 2: Cross Street 2 - northern side of Cross Street.

Site 3: New South Head Road 1 - Northern side of New South Head Road.

Site 4: New South Head Road 2 - southern side of New South Head Road.

Site 5: New South Head Road 3 - southern side of New South Head Road.

Site 6: Bay Street – western side of Bay Street.

#### 2.3 Development Options

As stated above, Council agreed to adopt the proposed planning FSR's 3:1 and 3.5:1 as the base case for the Bay Street and Cross Street Precincttest sites 1, 2 and 6. For the New South Head Road test sites 3, 4 and 5 we have adopted the proposed planning control FSR 3.5:1.

The additional three scenarios tested are in accordance with the Council Strategy that seeks to retain commercial floor space in new developments. The purpose of the modelling is to test the viability of providing 1.3:1 and 2:1 of commercial space in a new development in the Study Area.

Two development scenarios were agreed by Council for the Bay Street and Cross Street Precinct. The first scenario would test a mixed use development at an FSR that would include one level of commercial space at an FSR of 0.7:1 above retail ground floor space at an FSR 0.6:1. The second scenario would test a mixed use development at 3.5:1 that would include two floors of commercial space at an FSR of 1.4:1 that is above retail ground floor space at an FSR 0.6:1

The New South Head Road Precinct would test one scenario at an FSR 3.5:1 comprising a mixed use development with two floors of commercial floor space at an FSR 1.4:1 above retail ground floor at an FSR 0.6: 1 at an FSR of 3.5:1.



In the case that our modelling revealed that mixed use development with additional commercial floor space is not viable; an additional option referred to as the "Tipping Point" was assessed in each option to calculate the redevelopment viability. A breakdown of the options in each Precinct is outlined in 2.3.1 and 2.3.2.

#### 2.3.1 Bay Street and Cross Street Precinct Development Options

The Bay and Cross Street Precinct (Sites 1, 2 and 6) options are as follows:

- The Base Case Mixed Use Development at and FSR of 3:1 or 3.5:1: (Residential FSR at 2.4:1 or 2.9:1 and Retail at 0.6:1). This option uses an FSR of 3:1 or 3.5:1 which was in accordance with the proposed planning controls established by HillPDA in 2015. The proposed mixed use development comprises ground floor retail with a mix of residential apartments includes studios, one and two bedrooms located on the upper floors. Basement car parking was provided for both the retail units and the apartments in the development.
- Scenario 1a: Mixed Use Development at an FSR 3:1 (One Floor of Office Space (Residential FSR at 1.7:1, Retail 0.6:1 and office at 0.7:1)): This option was similar to the base case with an FSR at 3.1:1; however the first floor residential was converted to office space.
- Scenario 1b: Mixed Use Development FSR Tipping Point: This development option is similar to Option 1a, however the proposed development is to test the maximum FSR required for a development to become viable.
- Scenario 2a: Mixed Use Development at an FSR of 3.5:1: (Two floors of Office Space (Residential FSR at 1.5:1, Retail 0.6:1 and office at 1.4:1)): This option was similar to the base case with an FSR at 3.5:1, however first and second floor residential was converted to office space.
- Scenario 2b: Mixed Use Development FSR Tipping Point: This development option is similar to Option 2a, however the proposed development is to test the maximum FSR required for a development to become viable.
  - New South Head Road Precinct Development Options

The New South Head Road Precinct (Sites 3, 4 and 5) options are as follows.

- The Base Case: Mixed Use Development at an FSR of 3.5:1 (Residential at 2.9:1 and Retail at 0.6:1):

  This option uses an FSR 3.5:1 which was in accordance with the proposed planning controls established by HillPDA in 2015. The proposed mixed use development comprises ground floor retail with a mix of residential apartments includes studios, one and two bedrooms located on the upper floors. Basement car parking was provided for both the retail units and the apartments in the development.
- Scenario 3a: Mixed Use Development at an FSR of 3.5:1: (Two floors of Office Space (Residential FSR at 1.5:1, Retail at 0.6:1 and office at 1.4:1): This option was similar to the base case with an FSR at 3.5:1, however first and second floor residential was converted to office space.
- Scenario 3b: Mixed Use Development FSR Tipping Point: This development option is similar to Option 3a, however the proposed development is to test the maximum FSR required for a development to become viable.



#### 2.4 Financial Modelling Results

#### 2.4.1 Test Site 1: Cross Street 1

Table 1 provides a summary of the results of the modelling.

Table 1 - Site 1, Results

Site / Option Specifics	The Base Case FSR 3.5:1	Option 1A: One Floor	Option 1B : Tipping Point	Option 2A: Two floors	Option 2B: Tipping Point
Site Area (sqm)	1,036	1,036	1,036	1,036	1,036
No. of Residential Units	21	20	20	11	
Gross Building Area (sqm)	3,626	3,643	4,164	3,643	4,684
Total FSR	3.48:1	3.5:1	4:1	3.5	4.5
Total Residential FSR	2.9	2.2	2.7	1.5	2.5
Total Commercial FSR	0.58	1.3	1.3	2	2
Residual Land Value	\$46.7m	\$39.9m	\$47.1m	\$33.8	\$47.2m
Project IRR at 18%p.a	18%	11%	18%	4%	18%
Viability	Viable	Not Viable	Viable	Not Viable	Viable

Source: HillPDA 2018

#### What does it all mean?

The results revealed that to accommodate one to two floors of commercial office space the proposed planning FSR of 3.5:1 would be required to be increased to 4:1 to 4.5:1, resulting in the residential FSR to increase by 0.5 and 1:1 respectively.

#### 2.4.2 Test Site 2: Cross Street 2

Table 2 provides a summary of the results of the modelling.

Table 2 - Site 2 Results

Site / Option Specifics	The Base Case FSR 3.1	Option 1A: One Floor	Option 1B : Tipping Point	The Base Case at 3.5:1	Option 2A: Two Floors	Option 2B : Tipping Point
Site Area (sqm)	1,329	1,329	1,329	1,329	1,329	1,329
No. of Residential Units	34	24	37	41	22	29
Gross Building Area (sqm)	3,988	3,988	5,185	4,651	4,651	5,316
Total FSR	3	3	3.9	3.5	3.5	4.3
Total Residential FSR	2.4	1.7	2.6	2.9	1.5	2.3
Total Commercial FSR	0.6	1.3	1.3	0.6	2	2
Residual Land Value	\$39.4m	\$24.2m	\$33.2m	\$39.4m	\$26.8m	\$39.7m
Project IRR at 18%p.a	18%	6%	18%	18%	8%	18%
Viability	Viable	Not Viable	Viable	Viable	Not Viable	Viable



#### What does it all mean?

The results revealed that to accommodate one to two floors of commercial office space the proposed planning FSR of 3:1 would be required to be increased to 3.9 to 4.3:1, resulting in the residential FSR to increase by 0.8 and 0.9:1.

#### Test Site 3: New South Head Road 1

Table 3 provides a summary of the results of the modelling.

Table 3 - Site 3 Results

Site / Option Specifics	The Base Case at FSR 3.5	Option 1A Two Floors of commercial	Option 1B Tipping Point of two floors
Site Area (sqm)	547	547	547
No. of Residential Units	16	9	12
Gross Building Area (sqm)	1,916	1,916	2,300
Total FSR	3.5	3.5	3.9
Total Residential FSR	2.9	1.5	1.9
Total Commercial FSR	0.6	2	2
Residual Land Value	\$14.6m	\$10.3m	\$11.9m
Project IRR at 18%p.a	18%	13%	18%
Viability	Viable	Not Viable	Viable

#### What does it all mean?

The results revealed that to accommodate one to two floors of commercial office space the proposed planning FSR of 3.5:1 would be required to be increased to 3.9:1, resulting in the residential FSR to increase by 0.4:1.

#### 2.4.2.1 Test Site 4: New South Head Road 2

Table 4 provides a summary of the results of the modelling.

Table 4 - Site 4 Results

Site / Option Specifics	The Base Case FSR 3.5:1	Option 1A: Two Levels	Option 1B: Tipping Point
Site Area (sqm)	1,252	1,252	1,252
No. of Residential Units	35	17	24
Gross Building Area (sqm)	4,381	81	5,508
Total FSR	3.5	3.5	4.45
Total Residential FSR	2.9	1.5	2.4
Total Commercial FSR	0.6	2	2
Residual Land Value	\$34.7 m	\$23.7m	\$25.4m
Project IRR at 18%p.a	18%	15%	18%
Viability	Viable	Not Viable	Viable

#### What does it all mean?

The results that revealed to accommodate one to two floors of commercial office space the proposed planning FSR of 3.5:1 would be required to be increased to 4.45:1, resulting in the residential FSR to increase by 0.95:1.



#### 2.4.3 Test Site 5: New South Head Road 3

Table 5 provides a summary of the results of the modelling.

Table 5 - Site 5 Results

Site / Option Specifics	The Base Case FSR 3.5:1	Option 1: Two Levels	Option 1: Tipping Point
Site Area (sqm)	1,795	1,795	1,795
No. of Residential Units	54	28	48
Gross Building Area (sqm)	6,285	6,285	7,901
Total FSR	3.5	3.5	4.4
Total Residential FSR	2.9	1.5	2.4
Total Commercial FSR	0.6	2	2
Residual Land Value	\$44.1m	\$28.1m	\$38.8m
Project IRR at 18%p.a	18%	8%	18%
Viability	Viable	Not Viable	Viable

Source: HillPDA 2018

#### What does it all mean?

The results that revealed to accommodate one to two floors of commercial office space the proposed planning FSR of 3.5:1 would be required to be increased to 4.4:1, resulting in the residential FSR to increase by 0.9:1.

#### 2.4.4 Test Site 6: Bay Street

Table 6 provides a summary of the results of the modelling.

Table 6 - Site 6 Results

			1			1
Site / Option Specifics	The Base Case FSR 3:1	Option 1A: One Level	Option 1B: Tipping Point	The Base Case FSR 3.5:1	Option 2A: Two Levels	Option 2B: Tipping Point
Site Area (sqm)	1,112	1,112	1,112	1,112	1,112	1,112
No. of Residential Units	30	12	36	41	12	26
Gross Building Area (sqm)	3,336	3,336	5,004	3,819	3,819	5,004
Total FSR	3.5	3.5	3.85	3.5	3.5	4.1
Total Residential FSR	2.4	1.7	2.55	1.5	1.5	2.5
Total Commercial FSR	0.6	1.3	1.3	2	2	2
Residual Land Value	\$35.3m	\$27.2m	\$37.7m	\$41.0m	\$24.5m	\$37.8m
Project IRR at 18%p.a	16%	7%	18%	21%	3%	18%
Viability	Marginally Viable	Not Viable	Viable	Viable	Not Viable	Viable

#### What does it all mean?

The results revealed that to accommodate one to two floors of commercial office space the proposed planning FSR of 3.5:1 would be required to be increased to 3.85:1 and 4.1:1, resulting in the residential FSR to increase by 0.35:1 and 1.1 respectively.



### 3.0 KEY FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The financial modelling above revealed that all six test sites were not viable at the proposed planning FSRs of 3:1 and 3.5:1; with ground floor retail (FSR 0.6:1), commercial office space (first floor at an FSR 0.7:1/second floor at an FSR 0.7:1) with residential on the upper floors.

Our financial modelling suggests that a mixed use development comprising one floor of commercial floor space in the Bay and Cross Street Precinct (Test Site 1, Site 2 and Site 6) would require an increase from the proposed planning FSR of 3:1 and 3.5:1 to FSRs of 3.85:1 to 4:1, resulting in a residential FSR uplift of 0.35:1 to 0.9:1 respectively.

The results suggests that two floors of commercial space in the Bay and Cross Street Precinct (Test Site 1, Site 2 and Site 6) and New South Head Road Precinct (test Sites 3, Site 4 and 5) at the proposed planning FSR of 3.5:1 would require the FSR to be increase to 3.9:1 to 4.5:1, resulting in a residential increase of 0.4 and 1:1 respectively.

A summary of the Precincts and increase FSR required is as follows:

**Table 7 - Financial Modelling Results** 

		Breakdown of Land Use FSR				
Centre Precincts	Option	Residential FSR	Retail FSR	Commercial FSR	Total FSR	Viability
David Comm	Base Case at 3:1	2.4	0.6		3.0:1	Yes
Bay & Cross Street FSR at 3:1	Option 1: One Level of Commercial	1.7	0.6	0.7	3.0:1	No
3.1	Option 1B: One Level of Commercial Tipping Point	2.6	0.6	0.7	3.9:1	Yes
	Base Case at 3.5:1	2.9	0.6		3.5:1	Yes
	Option 1A: One Level of Commercial	2.2	0.6	0.7	3.5:1	No
Bay & Cross Street FSR at 3.5:1	Option 1B: One Level of Commercial - Tipping Point	2.7	0.6	0.7	4.0:1	Yes
	Option 2A: Two Levels of Commercial	1.5	0.6	1.3	3.5:1	No
	Option 2B: Two Levels of Commercial Tipping Point	2.5	0.6	1.3	4.5:1	Yes
New South Head Road at 3.5:1	Base Case at 3.5:1	2.9	0.6		3.5:1	Yes
	Option 3A: Two Levels of Commercial	1.5	0.6	1.3	3.5:1	No
	Option 3B: Two Levels of Commercial Tipping Point	1.9-2.4	0.6	1.3	3.9-4.4	Yes

Source: HillPDA 2018



In light of the above, we would support Council's Strategy to seek a minimum commercial FSR of 1.3:1 on the basis that it would support the provision of additional employment and a greater level of day time activity. However to encourage the redevelopment of additional commercial floor space in the Centre our modelling results above identify the need to increase the proposed planning FSRs.

To this effect we would recommend Council consider a review of their proposed planning FSRs to permit an FSR of 4:1 for one floor of commercial floor space and an FSR of 4.5:1 for two floors of commercial floor space. The most appropriate FSR or FSRs within this range (or otherwise) would be dependent on urban design testing and other environmental considerations. Each site and its 'tipping point' must however be considered on its merits.

Table 8 displays a comparison of the existing FSR, the proposed planning FSRs recommended by HillPDA in 2015 and 2018:

**Table 8: Existing and Proposed Planning Controls** 

	Existing Controls	Proposed Planning FSRs as at 2015	Proposed Planning FSRs as at 2018
Total FSR	2.5:1	3:1 to 3.5:1	4:1 to 4.5:1
Non- Residential FSR	0.6:1	0.6:1	1.3:1 to 2:1
Residential FSR	1.9:1	2.5 to 2.9	2.7:1 to 2.5:1

Source: WLEP 2014 and HillPDA 2015 &2018



### APPENDIX A: MARKET RESEARCH

#### 3.1 Residential Apartment Sales Evidence

HillPDA have researched four new residential development's current asking prices or sold prices 'off the plan' in the suburbs of Double bay and Rose Bay. These developments have informed our research on sale values being achieved, the apartment mix, and supply and demand in the study area and its surrounds.

The four developments that have been analysed are as follows:

- 1. '1788 Residences', 20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay
- 2. Essence 321 New South Head Road
- 3. 33-39 Hamilton Street, Rose Bay
- 4. 'Aristocrat', 62A Dover Road, Rose Bay

#### 3.1.1 '1788 Residences', 20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay

This development is a six storey mixed use development comprising 6 commercial/retail units over 554sqm & a cafe/restaurant area of 185sqm on the ground floor level & 31 residential units above. The unit mix comprises 6 x one bedroom, 12 x two bedroom & 12 x three bedrooms & 1 x four bedroom units. Basement car parking over two levels with car parking.

The selling agent has advised that the marketing campaign commenced in August 2017 and 13 units (42%) have sold 'off the plan' showing a sale rate of 1.3 units/month.

Table 9 - '1788 Residences', 20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay

'1788 Residences', 20-26				
Туре	Sale Price range	Internal Area (sqm)	\$/sqm of NSA	No. Car Spaces
One bedroom	\$1,690,000	52	\$32,500	-
Two bedroom	\$3,500,000 - \$3,750,000	95 – 109	\$36,842 - \$34,404	1
Two bed + study	\$4,100,000 - \$4,300,000	101 – 115	\$40,594 - \$37,391	1
Three bed	\$5,200,000	295	\$43,333	2

Source: Selling agent 2018

Figure 2 -20-26 Cross Street, Double Bay





#### 3.1.2 'Essence', 321 New South Head Road, Double Bay

This development is a four storey residential apartment building comprising 38 residential apartments (13 x 1 bedrooms, 20 x 2 bedrooms and 5 x 3 bedrooms) over basement car parking. We have been advised on the following re-sales:

- 1 bedroom apartment with a 55sqm internal area was resold for \$1,350,000 reflecting a sale rate of \$24,545/sqm of NSA prior to the completion of the project
- 2 bedroom apartments with a 75sqm internal area were resold for \$2,195,000 reflecting a sale rate of \$29,267/sqm of NSA prior to the completion of the project.





Source: realestate.com

#### 3.1.3 33-39 Hamilton Street, Rose Bay

This development is a mixed use development comprising 19 apartments (comprising 1 x 1, 1 x 2 and 17 x 3 bedrooms) and ground floor retail of 1,475 sqm. A basement car park comprising 90 car spaces was also granted. The selling agent was unable to disclose the sale particulars but advised that a three bedroom unit of 150sqm (NSA) sold for \$2,950,000 reflecting a dollar sale rate of \$19,667/sqm. The dominant buyer profile is a local owner-occupier.

Figure 4 - 33-39 Hamilton Street, Rose Bay



Source: realestate.com



#### 3.1.4 'Aristocrat', 62A Dover Road, Rose Bay

Proposed development for a four storey mixed use development comprising 3 retail tenancies of 98 sqm, 187 sqm & 197 sqm (483 sqm in total) and 27 residential averments (comprising 3 x 1 bedroom, 21 x 2 bedroom & 3 x 3 bedroom apartments including 3 adaptable units).

The selling agent was unable to disclose the asking price or sale particulars but advised that they have just commenced the marketing campaign and received a deposit for a 1 bedroom apartment (51 sqm) for \$1,375,000 which reflects a sale rate of \$26,961/sqm of NSA.

Table 10 - Aristocrat Rose Bay

	Parking	Asking Price	Size (Internal)	\$/sqm (Internal)
1 bed + study	1	\$1,375,000	51 – 54	\$26,961 – \$25,463
2 bed	1	\$1,975,000	81	\$24,383
3 bed	2	\$3,500,000	115	\$30,435

Source: Luxcon Group



Source: Realestate.com

#### 3.2 Residential Findings

- The likely buyer profile of the end-value is an owner-occupier, dominated by local down-sizers already established in the area with three bedroom unit type being the most popular
- A car space is estimated to have an indicative value of \$100,000 to \$150,000 and not providing a car space is considered to be hindrance to the marketability of the unit.



#### 3.3 Overview of non-residential market

The Double Bay commercial and retail property market took a hit after the completion of Bondi Junction Westfield and the relocation of the old cinema; however agents have indicated that retail and commercial office space has experienced strong growth in both investment sales and tenants seeking retail and commercial space over recent years. This strong activity has been demonstrated in sale values and rents being achieved over the past six months compared to those achieved over the last three years. An example for this growth is a commercial cottage on Transvaal Avenue which was renting for \$900/sqm three years prior and more recently is being rented for \$1,400/sqm.

#### 3.4 Commercial Market Evidence Findings

- The Centre has traditionally been a retail centre with ancillary residential and commercial units.
   Commercial office space generally consists of ground floor retail or commercial and first floor commercial office space;
- Research revealed that professional services and medical clinics dominate the commercial market with a typical floor plate of 50sqm to 150sqm. There is currently a limited amount of new stock on the market;
- Older office premises and laneway office space tends to be vacant for longer periods oppose to space located in the retail core areas (Knox, Cross and Bay Street). Discussions with local leasing agents indicated that landowners are willing to negotiate slightly lower market rents in order to secure a tenant. Agents revealed that tenants are requesting space that has good road exposure, pedestrian footfall and accessibility to car parking;
- There is a moderate level of demand for commercial space now and in the immediate future, however sale prices and rents need to be realistic for the buyer or tenant, otherwise the space may remain vacant for some time;
- There has been increased demand for serviced offices such as Edge Offices, 377 Old New South Head Road. Agents have also reported an increased level of enquiries for larger floor plates of 200-300sqm by fashion, medical and professional service providers; and
- Commercial office space will typically sell within the range of \$10,000/sqm to \$15,000/sqm in a prime location (i.e. street exposure) and \$7,000/sqm to-\$10,000/sqm in a secondary location (i.e. low pedestrian traffic or first floor).

#### 3.5 Retail Market Evidence Findings

- Double Bay has traditionally been considered an established retail Centre owing to the wider catchment of shoppers it has attracted to its specialty in high fashion, café, restaurant and lounge bar scene;
- Agents indicated that retail premises located in Bay Street, Cross Street and Knox Street are the better
  performing streets for retail due to high footfall and good exposure. Retail premises located along New
  South Head Road have a slightly lower demand which can make it difficult to lease or sell;
- Conversations with the selling agent for 'Aristocrat', 62A Dover Road, Rose Bay have indicated a sale rate for the retail component of the project of approximately \$16,000/sqm of NSA; and
- Retail space in a prime location will typically sell within the range of \$25,000- \$30,000/sqm (Knox, Cross and Bay Streets) and secondary retail along New Head South Road could achieve approximately \$20,000/sqm.



#### **Disclaimer**

- 1. This report is for the confidential use only of the party to whom it is addressed ("Client") for the specific purposes to which it refers and has been based on, and takes into account, the Client's specific instructions. It is not intended to be relied on by any third party who, subject to paragraph 3, must make their own enquiries in relation to the issues with which this report deals.
- 2. HillPDA makes no representations as to the appropriateness, accuracy or completeness of this report for the purpose of any party other than the Client ("Recipient"). HillPDA disclaims all liability to any Recipient for any loss, error or other consequence which may arise as a result of the Recipient acting, relying upon or using the whole or part of this report's contents.
- 3. This report must not be disclosed to any Recipient or reproduced in whole or in part, for any purpose not directly connected to the project for which HillPDA was engaged to prepare the report, without the prior written approval of HillPDA. In the event that a Recipient wishes to rely upon this report, the Recipient must inform HillPDA who may, in its sole discretion and on specified terms, provide its consent.
- 4. This report and its attached appendices are based on estimates, assumptions and information provided by the Client or sourced and referenced from external sources by HillPDA. While we endeavour to check these estimates, assumptions and information, no warranty is given in relation to their reliability, feasibility, accuracy or reasonableness. HillPDA presents these estimates and assumptions as a basis for the Client's interpretation and analysis. With respect to forecasts, HillPDA does not present them as results that will actually be achieved. HillPDA relies upon the interpretation of the Client to judge for itself the likelihood of whether these projections can be achieved or not.
- 5. Due care has been taken to prepare the attached financial models from available information at the time of writing, however no responsibility can be or is accepted for errors or inaccuracies that may have occurred either with the programming or the resultant financial projections and their assumptions.
- 6. This report does not constitute a valuation of any property or interest in property. In preparing this report HillPDA has relied upon information concerning the subject property and/or proposed development provided by the Client and HillPDA has not independently verified this information except where noted in this report.
- 7. In relation to any valuation which is undertaken for a Managed Investment Scheme (as defined by the Managed Investments Act 1998) or for any lender that is subject to the provisions of the Managed Investments Act, the following clause applies:
  - This valuation is prepared on the assumption that the lender or addressee as referred to in this valuation report (and no other) may rely on the valuation for mortgage finance purposes and the lender has complied with its own lending guidelines as well as prudent finance industry lending practices, and has considered all prudent aspects of credit risk for any potential borrower, including the borrower's ability to service and repay any mortgage loan. Further, the valuation is prepared on the assumption that the lender is providing mortgage financing at a conservative and prudent loan to value ratio.
- 8. HillPDA makes no representations or warranties of any kind, about the accuracy, reliability, completeness, suitability or fitness in relation to maps generated by HillPDA or contained within this report.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under the Professional Standards Legislation



# HIPDA

#### **SYDNEY**

Level 3, 234 George Street Sydney NSW 2000 GPO Box 2748 Sydney NSW 2001

t: +61 2 9252 8777 f: +61 2 9252 6077

e: sydney@hillpda.com

#### **MELBOURNE**

Suite 114, 838 Collins Street

Docklands VIC 3008 t: +61 3 9629 1842

f: +61 3 9629 6315

e: melbourne@hillpda.com

#### WWW.HILLPDA.COM